NOTICE OF MEETING

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Thursday, 18th January, 2024, 7.45 pm - George Meehan House, 294
High Road, N22 8JZ (watch the live meeting here and watch the
recording here)

Members: Councillors Erdal Dogan (Chair), Kaushika Amin, Cathy Brennan,
Elderidge Culverwell (Vice-Chair), Mary Mason, Ajda Ovat and Alessandra Rossetti

Quorum: 3

1.

FILMING AT MEETINGS

Please note this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for live or
subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone attending
the meeting using any communication method. Members of the public
participating in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions,
making oral protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed,
recorded or reported on. By entering the ‘meeting room’, you are consenting
to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings.

The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any
individual, or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of Urgent Business.
(Late items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New
items will be dealt with under item 7 below).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a

matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is
considered:

Haringey


https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MDc1Y2M0MjktZmI2NS00ZWUwLWE0MjEtNzcyODMzZjA2MWQy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226ddfa760-8cd5-44a8-8e48-d8ca487731c3%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22082c2e5d-5e1e-45e1-aa8b-522a7eea8a16%22%7d
https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PL_DSjoFpWl8tSPZp3XSVAEhv-gWr-6Vzd

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest
becomes apparent, and

(i) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must
withdraw from the meeting room.

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28
days of the disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of
Conduct.

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS

To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, section B,
Paragraph 29 of the Council’s Constitution.

6. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2024/25 (PAGES 1
- 24)

The Council has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice
(the CIPFA Code) which requires the Council to approve a treasury
management strategy before the start of each financial year. This report fulfils
the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to have
regard to the CIPFA Code.

7. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

8. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

7 March 2024

Nazyer Choudhury, Principal Committee Co-ordinator
Tel — 0208 489 3321

Fax — 020 8881 5218

Email: nazyer.choudhury@haringey.gov.uk

Fiona Alderman
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer)
George Meehan House, 294 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8JZ

Wednesday, 10 January 2024


mailto:nazyer.choudhury@haringey.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 6

Report for: Audit Committee — 18 January 2024

Item number: 6

Title: Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2024/25
Report

authorised by: Josephine Lyseight, Assistant Director of Finance (Deputy
S151 Officer)

Lead Officer: Tim Mpofu, Head of Finance — Pensions and Treasury
tim.mpofu@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: N/A

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Non Key decision

Describe the issue under consideration

1.1. The Council has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of
Practice (the CIPFA Code) which requires the Council to approve a treasury
management strategy before the start of each financial year. This report
fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to
have regard to the CIPFA Code.

1.2. The CIPFA Code requires the Committee responsible for monitoring
treasury management activities to formulate the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement (TMSS). The TMSS is then subject to scrutiny before
being approved by Full Council.

1.3. This report presents this Committee with the updated TMSS for 2024/25,
subject to its scrutiny at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting
on 18 January 2024, and in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Finance.

Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1. Not applicable.

3. Recommendations
The Audit Committee is recommended:

3.1. To agree the proposed updated Treasury Management Strategy Statement
for 2024/25 and to recommend it to Full Council for approval.

3.2. To note that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (at its meeting on 18
January 2024) and the Cabinet Member for Finance have been / are being
consulted in the preparation of the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement.


mailto:tim.mpofu@haringey.gov.uk

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

Page 2

Reason for Decision

. The CIPFA Code requires all local authorities to agree a Treasury

Management Strategy annually in advance of the new financial year.

Other options considered
Not applicable.

Background information

. The Council's treasury management activity is underpinned by CIPFA’s

Treasury Management in Public Services: Code of Practice (the CIPFA
Code), which requires all local authorities to produce annually a Treasury
Management Strategy Statement.

Treasury management is the management of the Council’s cash flows,
borrowing and investments, and the associated risks. The Council has
borrowed and invested substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed
to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect
of changing interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring and
control of financial risk are therefore central to the Council’s prudent financial
management.

The following sections provide a summary of the proposed treasury strategy
for the financial year 2024/2025.

Economic Background

The Council's treasury management strategy for 2024/25 will be significantly
influenced by several factors, including inflation, higher interest rates, a
weakening economic outlook, an uncertain political climate due to an
upcoming general election, and ongoing conflicts in Ukraine and the Middle
East.

The economic outlook remains uncertain, and financial markets are
expected to experience increased volatility in the near term. The Bank of
England (BoE) anticipates that CPI inflation will continue to fall slowly based
on the interest rate path implied by financial markets. However, the BoE also
anticipates that interest rates will remain higher for longer, as it is projected
that inflation will not reach the 2% target until early 2025.

The table below shows an extract of the Bank Rate over the past 12 months.

Jan-23 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23
BoE Bank Rate 3.5% 4.25% 5.00% 5.25% 5.25%

Further details on the economic outlook over the medium term can be found
in section 2 and Annex 1 of Appendix 1 to this report.

Haringey Council’s Local Context

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement sets out a five-year position
throughout the report, which better aligns with the Council’s medium term
financial strategy.



Page 3

6.9. The Council’'s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes, also referred
to as the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is set out in section 3 of
Appendix 1 to this report. The Council has an increasing CFR driven by its
overall capital programme. As a result, additional borrowing will be required
in the upcoming years to finance both the General Fund and the Housing
Revenue Account’s (HRA) capital programmes.

6.10. For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new treasury
investments will be made at an average rate of 4.75%, and that new-long
term loans will be borrowed at an average rate of 5.50%.

Borrowing Strategy

6.11. The Council’s primary objective when borrowing is to strike an appropriate
balance between securing low interest costs and achieving cost certainty
over the period for which funds are required.

6.12. The cost of borrowing has increased significantly for both short-term and
long-term debt. The table below shows the rates offered across the various
PWLB maturities on 30 September 2023. The rates shown include the
0.20% certainty discount rate offered by the PWLB to qualifying authorities.

PWLB Jan-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23
Maturity

1-year 4.33% 4.78% 6.22% 5.69% 5.13%
5-year 4.48% 4.31% 5.71% 5.22% 4.19%
10-year 4.59% 4.33% 5.35% 5.26% 4.37%
20 year 4.89% 4.70% 5.36% 5.64% 4.90%
50 year 4.49% 4.41% 4.95% 5.43% 4.68%

6.13. The Council's borrowing decisions are not based on any single outcome for
interest rates, and it intends to maintain a balanced portfolio of short and
long-term borrowing.

6.14. Further details on the Council’s borrowing strategy including the available
sources of borrowing can be found in section 4 of Appendix 1 to this report.

Treasury Investment Strategy

6.15. In accordance with the CIPFA Code and government guidance, the Council
aims to strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, when making
treasury investments. The aim is to prioritise the security and liquidity of its
investments before seeking the optimum rate of return or yield.

6.16. Further details on the Council’s treasury investment strategy including the
proposed counterparties, investment limits and treasury risk assessment
approach can be found in section 5 of Appendix 1 to this report.

Treasury Management Prudential Indicators

6.17. The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management
risks using several indicators that are set when the Treasury Management
Strategy is approved in advance of the new financial year.



Page 4

6.18. A detailed assessment of the proposed treasury management prudential

7.

7.1.

8.

8.1.

9.

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

1.1

10.

indicators for the next financial year can be found in section 6 of Appendix 1
to this report.

Contribution to Strategic Outcomes
None

Carbon and Climate Change
Not applicable

Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities)

Finance and Procurement

Finance Comments are included throughout the attached report.
Head of Legal and Governance [Benita Edwards, Head of Leqgal Services]

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report
which is consistent with legislation governing the financial affairs of the
Council. In particular, the Council must comply with the requirements of the
Local Government Act 2003 (“the 2003 Act”), the Local Authorities (Capital
Financing & Accounting — England) Regulations 2003 and the CIPFA
Treasury Management code.

The prudential capital finance system relies on the provisions of Part 1 of the
2003 Act. Under this system, local authorities can borrow funds for capital
investment as long as the borrowing remains within prudent limits. Section
1 of the 2003 Act allows the council to borrow for any purpose related to its
functions or the prudent management of its financial affairs, provided it does
not breach the affordable borrowing limit determined in accordance with
section 3(1) of the 2003 Act.

The Treasury Management Strategy is part of the Council’'s Policy
Framework. As such, approval of the Treasury Management Strategy is
reserved to Full Council. The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference include
“‘Reviewing and monitoring treasury management arrangements in
accordance with Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of
Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (CIPFA, 2017)” and the “power
to make recommendations to the Council on any of its functions set out in
Article 4”. Accordingly, it is confirmed that it is within the remit of Audit
Committee to approve the Recommendations in this report.

In considering the report, Audit Committee must take into account the expert
financial advice available to it and any further oral advice given at the
meeting of the Committee.

Equalities
There are no equalities issues arising from this report.

Use of Appendices



Page 5

10.1. Appendix 1 — Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2024/25
11. Background Papers

11.1.None



This page is intentionally left blank



1.

1.2.

1.3.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

Page 7

London Borough of Haringey
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2024/25

Introduction

Treasury management is the management of the Council’s cash flows, borrowing and
investments, and the associated risks. The Council has borrowed and invested substantial
sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested
funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates. The successful identification,
monitoring and control of financial risk are therefore central to the Council’s prudent
financial management.

Treasury risk management at the Council is conducted within the framework of the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the
Public Services: Code of Practice 2021 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the
Council to approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial year.
This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to
have regard to the CIPFA Code.

Investments held for service purposes or for commercial profit are considered in a different
report.

External Context — provided by the Council’s appointed treasury advisor,
Arlingclose

Economic background

The Council's treasury management strategy for 2024/25 will be significantly influenced by
several factors, including inflation, higher interest rates, a weakening economic outlook, an
uncertain political climate due to an upcoming general election, and ongoing conflicts in
Ukraine and the Middle East.

UK inflation, interest rates and economic growth outlook

The Bank of England's (BoE) Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) continued to tighten
monetary policy throughout 2023. The Bank Rate was raised to a peak of 5.25% in August
2023. However, contrary to expectations of another increase in September, the MPC
decided to maintain this level for the rest of the year. The table below shows an extract of
the Bank of England’s Bank Rates throughout the year.

Jan-23 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23

BoE Bank Rate 3.5% 4.25% 5.00% 5.25% 5.25%

The November quarterly Monetary Policy Report (MPR) forecasted an extended period of
low Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth, with the potential for a slight decline due to
continued weak economic activity. The BoE also anticipates that higher interest rates will
constrain GDP growth, which is forecast to remain weak over the forecast period.

The forecast for UK Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation was considered highly uncertain,
with potential upside risks to CPI reaching the 2% target in the near term. These risks are
driven primarily by potential energy price increases, strong domestic wage growth, and the
persistence of price-setting.

The Office for National Statistics (ONS) reported that the annual CPI inflation measure for
the UK was 3.9% in November 2023, down from 4.6% in the previous month. Looking

1



2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

2.13.

2.14.

2.15.

Page 8

ahead, the Bank of England (BoE) anticipates that CPI inflation will continue to fall slowly
based on the interest rate path implied by financial markets. However, it is projected to take
until early 2025 to reach the 2% target, and then fall below target in the second half of 2025
and into 2026.

Despite the challenging economic environment, demand for labour has remained strong.
The table below shows an extract of the reported annual unemployment rate over the past
four quarters.

Jan-23 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23

Unemployment rate 3.7% 4.9% 4.2% 4.2%

Looking ahead, the Monetary Policy Report (MPR) indicates that the unemployment rate is
expected to gradually increase over the forecast period and reach approximately 5% by
late 2025 or early 2026.

Global economic outlook

Having increased its key interest rate to a target range of 5.25-5.50% in August 2023, the
US Federal Reserve (Fed) decided to pause in September and November, keeping the Fed
Funds rate target at this level. It is likely this level represents the peak in the Fed’s rate
hiking cycle, after it struck a more cautious and accommodating tone following the
December 2023 meeting.

In the Eurozone, inflation has been steadily declining since the beginning of 2023, reaching
an annual rate of 2.4% in November 2023. Economic growth has been weak, with GDP
contracting by 0.1% in the three months leading up to September 2023. In line with other
central banks, the European Central Bank has raised its rates, bringing the deposit facility,
fixed rate tender, and marginal lending rates to 4.00%, 4.50%, and 4.75% respectively.

Credit Outlook

Credit Default Swaps (CDS) are financial derivatives that investors use as insurance to
offset their credit risk with that if another investor. Throughout 2023, CDS prices were
volatile. They spiked in March due to concerns of banking sector contagion following the
insolvency of Silicon Valley Bank and the takeover of Credit Suisse by UBS. After declining
in Q2 of the calendar year, CDS prices began to steadily rise in the second half of the year.

Factors contributing to this increase include higher interest rates and inflation, and the
ongoing war in Ukraine, and now the Middle East. However, on an annual basis, the
volatility of CDS prices was lower in 2023 compared to 2022.

Moody's, a US-based credit rating agency, has revised its outlook on the UK sovereign from
negative to stable. This change reflects their view of restored political predictability following
the volatility after the 2022 mini-budget. Moody's has also affirmed the Aa3 rating,
acknowledging the UK's economic resilience and strong institutional framework.

Following its rating action on the UK sovereign, Moody’s revised the outlook on five UK
banks to stable from negative. It also made the same adjustment for five rated local
authorities. However, in the same update, the long-term ratings of those five local
authorities were downgraded.

Competing tensions persist in the banking sector. On one hand, higher interest rates boost
net income and profitability. On the other hand, a weakening economic outlook and potential
recessions increase the possibility of a deterioration in the quality of banks' assets.

However, the institutions on the Council’s treasury management adviser, Arlingclose’s
counterparty list remain well-capitalised, and the counterparty advice provided on both

2



2.16.

2.17.

2.18.

2.19.

3.2.

3.3.

Page 9

recommended institutions and maximum duration remain under constant review and will
continue to reflect economic conditions and the credit outlook.

Interest rate forecast (December 2023)

Although UK inflation and wage growth remain elevated, the Council’s treasury
management adviser Arlingclose forecasts that the Bank Rate has peaked at 5.25%. The
Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) is expected to begin reducing rates
in 2024 to stimulate the UK economy, but it will be cautious and wait until it is confident that
there will be no lasting second-round effects. Arlingclose forecasts rate cuts starting from
Q3 2024, with rates potentially reaching a low of around 3% by early to mid-2026.

Arlingclose anticipates that long-term gilt yields will remain generally stable at their current
levels, despite ongoing volatility. This follows the decrease in yields towards the end of
2023, which reflects the projected lower medium-term trajectory for the Bank Rate. Yields
will continue to be relatively higher compared to previous periods, influenced by quantitative
tightening and substantial bond supply. However, it is important to note that there may still
be short-term fluctuations caused by economic and political uncertainty and events.

A more detailed economic and interest rate forecast provided by Arlingclose is included in
this document as Annex A.

For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new treasury investments
will be made at an average rate of 4.75%, and that new long-term loans will be borrowed
at an average rate of 5.50%.

Local Context

On 31 December 2023, the Council held £787.1m of borrowing and £54.4m of treasury
investments. This is set out further in detail at Annex B. Forecast changes in these sums
are shown in the balance sheet analysis in table 1 below.

Table 1: Balance Sheet Summary and Forecast (Capital Financing Requirement)

31.3.23 31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.26 31.3.27 31.3.28 31.3.29
Actual Estimate | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
General Fund CFR 649.8 698.5 779.6 855.8 907.8 949.5 1,000.3
HRA CFR 471.1 516.1 643.5 838.5 | 1,081.4 | 1,329.9 1,471.3
Total CFR 1,142.9 1,214.6 1,423.1 1,694.3 1,989.2 | 2,279.4 | 2,471.6
Less: Other debt liabilities* -22.0 -17.7 -13.2 -10.6 -9.9 -9.2 -8.5
Loans CFR 1,120.9 1,196.9 1,409.9 1,683.7 1,979.3 | 2,270.2 2,463.1
Less: Internal borrowing -337.6 -316.5 -332.7 -352.4 -364.1 -366.0 -374.8
CFR Funded by External 7833 | 880.4 | 1,077.2 | 1,331.3 | 1,6152 | 1,9042 | 2,088.3
Borrowing
Breakdown of External
Borrowing:
Existing borrowing** 783.3 760.4 677.3 661.3 645.3 629.3 613.3
New borrowing to be raised - 120.0 399.9 670.0 969.9 1,274.9 1,475.0

* leases and PFI liabilities that form part of the Authority’s total debt

** shows only loans to which the Authority is committed and excludes optional refinancing

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR). The Council’s current strategy is to maintain borrowing and
investments below their underlying levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing.

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends that the
Council’s total debt should be lower than its highest forecast CFR over the next three years.

3



Page 10

Table 1 shows that the Council expects to comply with this recommendation during the
medium-term financial strategy (MTFS) forecast period.

3.4. The Council has an increasing CFR due to the capital programme, but minimal treasury
investments, therefore there will be a new borrowing requirement of up to £1,475m over the
forecast period 2024/25 to 2028/29 (See Table 1). Table 2 below shows a breakdown of
the forecast borrowing position at each financial year end to finance both the General Fund
and the Housing Revenue Account’s (HRA) capital programmes.

Table 2: Year-end Borrowing Position Summary

31.3.23 31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.26 31.3.27 31.3.28 31.3.29
Actual Estimate | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
General Fund borrowing 421.9 410.2 477.9 535.6 578.2 620.9 663.6
HRA borrowing 361.4 470.2 599.3 795.7 1,037.0 1,283.3 1,424.7
Total borrowing 783.3 880.4 1,077.2 1,331.3 1,615.2 1,904.2 2,088.3

3.5. The Council's capital plans are the primary driver of the Council's borrowing requirement,
and they are outlined in detail in the Council's main budget report, specifically in the Capital
Strategy section. The Council’s capital programme is robustly scrutinised and tested to
ensure that the capital plans are affordable and prudent. Table 1 shows the five-year effects
of the Council’s capital programme; however, all capital plans are assessed in their entirety
(i.e., some schemes are for a greater than five year time frame).

Liability Benchmark

3.6. The liability benchmark has been calculated to compare the Council’s actual borrowing
against an alternative strategy. The liability benchmark shows the lowest risk level of
borrowing. This assumes the same borrowing forecasts as table 1 above, but that cash and
investment balances are kept to a minimum level of £20m at each year-end to maintain
sufficient liquidity but minimise credit risk.

3.7. The liability benchmark is an important tool to help establish whether the Council is likely to
be a long-term borrower or a long-term investor in the future. This is important in developing
the Council’s strategic focus and decision making. The liability benchmark itself represents
an estimate of the cumulative amount of external borrowing the Council must hold to fund
its current capital and revenue plans while keeping treasury investments at the minimum
level required to manage day-to-day cash flow.

Table 3: Prudential Indicator — Liability Benchmark

31.3.23 31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.26 31.3.27 31.3.28 31.3.29

Actual Estimate Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Loans CFR 1,120.9 1,196.9 1,409.9 1,683.7 1,979.3 2,270.2 2,463.1

Less: Balance Sheet

-424.8 -419.0 | -4,248.8 -429.5 -433.3 -440.4 -440.4
resources

Net loans 696.1 7779 | -2,838.9 | 12542 | 15460 | 1,829.8| 2,022.7
requirement

Plus: Liquidity 20.0 30.0 30.0 30.0 30.0 30.0 20.0
allowance

Liability Benchmark 716.1 807.9| 28089 | 12842 | 15760 1,859.8| 2,042.7

3.8. The long-term liability benchmark assumes the same capital expenditure funded by
borrowing as included in the CFR, minimum revenue provision on new capital expenditure
based on a 25-year asset life and income, expenditure and reserves all increasing by



4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

Page 11

inflation of 2.5% a year. This is shown in the chart on the following page together with the
maturity profile of the Council’s existing borrowing.

Liability Banchmark - Haringay LB

3000

Q
HEE Me4 M6 0B HE) AEl 0 MBd 36 MeE a0 Ml M4 XeE B NS0 MEX  HSY M5 NS 050 MR e Mee M2 O W

I Fieed rate loans LOBO loans — Lo OFR e ik by Benchmaris === Netloams requirement

Borrowing Strateqy

On 31 December 2023, the Council held £787.1m of loans as part of its strategy for funding
previous years’ capital programmes. The balance sheet forecast in table 1 shows that the
Council expects to increase its borrowing by up to £400m by the end of 2024/25. The
Council may also borrow additional sums to pre-fund future years’ borrowing requirements,
provided this does not exceed the authorised limit for borrowing as set out in the Capital
Strategy.

Objectives

The Council’s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an appropriately low risk
balance between securing low interest costs and achieving certainty of those costs over the
period for which funds are required. The flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Council’s
long-term plans change, is a secondary objective.

Strategy

Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and, in particular, to local government
funding, the Council’s borrowing strategy continues to address the key issue of affordability
without compromising the longer-term stability of the debt portfolio. Short-term interest rates
are currently at a 15-year high but are expected to fall in the coming years. The scale of the
Council’s capital programme, and the need to diversify the Council’s debt portfolio to further
minimise refinancing risk means that long term borrowing will be required during 2024/25.
Therefore, the Council’s strategy will be to fulfil its borrowing requirement during the
financial year with a mixture of short-term and long-term borrowing.

By doing so, the Council aims to reduce net borrowing costs and reduce overall treasury
risk. The benefits of short-term borrowing will be monitored regularly against the potential
for incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years when long-term
borrowing rates are forecast to rise modestly. Arlingclose will assist the Council with this

5



4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

4.10.

Page 12

‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis. Its output may determine whether the Council
borrows additional sums at long-term fixed rates in 2024/25 with a view to keeping future
interest costs low, even if this causes additional cost in the short-term.

The Council has in recent years raised all its long-term borrowing from the Public Works
Loan Board (PWLB) but will consider long-term loans from other sources including banks,
pension funds and other local authorities, and may investigate the possibility of issuing
bonds and similar instruments, in order to lower interest costs and reduce over-reliance on
one source of funding in line with the CIPFA Code. PWLB loans are no longer available to
local authorities planning to buy investment assets primarily for yield; the Council has not
done this in the past and intends to avoid this activity in order to retain its access to PWLB
loans.

Alternatively, the Council may arrange forward starting loans, where the interest rate is fixed
in advance, but the cash is received in later years. This would enable certainty of cost to be
achieved without suffering a cost of carry in the intervening period.

In addition, the Council may borrow short-term loans to cover unplanned cash flow
shortages.

Sources of Borrowing
The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing are:
e HM Treasury’s PWLB lending facility (formerly the Public Works Loan Board)

UK Infrastructure Bank Ltd

any institution approved for investments (see below)

any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK

any other UK public sector body

UK public and private sector pension funds (except Haringey Pension Fund and
the London Collective Investment Vehicle)

capital market bond investors

retail investors via a regulated peer-to-peer platform

¢ UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose companies created
to enable local authority bond issues

Other Sources of Debt Finance

In addition, capital finance may be raised by the following methods that are not borrowing,
but may be classed as other debt liabilities:

Leasing

Hire Purchase

Private Finance Initiative
Sale and Lease Back
Similar asset based finance

Municipal Bonds Agency

The UK Municipal Bonds Agency was established in 2014 by the Local Government
Association as an alternative to the PWLB. It issues bonds on the capital markets and lends
the proceeds to local authorities. This is a more complicated source of finance than the
PWLB for two reasons: borrowing authorities will be required to provide bond investors with
a guarantee to refund their investment in the event that the agency is unable to for any
reason; and there will be a lead time of several months between committing to borrow and
knowing the interest rate payable. Any decision to borrow from the Agency will therefore be
the subject of a separate report to the Audit Committee.

LOBOs



4.11.

4.12.

4.13.

4.14.

4.15.

5.2.

Page 13

The Council holds £100m of LOBO (Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option) loans where the
lender has the option to propose an increase in the interest rate at set dates, following which
the Council has the option to either accept the new rate or to repay the loan at no additional
cost. £50m of these LOBOs have options exercisable during 2024/25, and with interest
rates having risen sharply recently, there is now a reasonable likelihood that lenders will
explore their ability to exercise their options. If they do, the Council will take the option to
repay the LOBO loans to reduce refinancing risk in later years.

Some LOBO lenders may be open to negotiating premature exit terms from LOBO loans
via payment of a premium to the lender. The Council’s policy will be to exit LOBO
agreements if the costs of replacing the loans, including all premium, transaction and
funding costs, generate a material net revenue saving for the Council over the life of the
loan in net present value terms, and all costs are consistent with Haringey’s approved
medium term financial strategy. The decision to repay a LOBO loan will be determined by
the S151 Officer in consultation with the lead Cabinet member for Finance, in line with
Haringey’s constitution.

When loans are prematurely repaid, there is usually a premium payable to the lender, to
compensate them for interest forgone at the contractual rate, where prevailing interest rates
are lower. The Council would need to refinance LOBOs by raising borrowing for both the
original sum borrowed, and the premium payable to the lender. However, this type of
arrangement can prove beneficial where interest savings exceed premium costs.
Replacing LOBOs that contain an option for lenders to increase the rate, with fixed rate
debt would reduce refinancing and interest rate risk.

Short-term and Variable Rate Loans

These loans leave the Council exposed to the risk of short-term interest rate rises and are
therefore subject to the interest rate exposure limits in the treasury management indicators
below. Financial derivatives may be used to manage this interest rate risk.

Debt Rescheduling

The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity and either pay a premium or
receive a discount according to a set formula based on current interest rates. Other lenders
may also be prepared to negotiate premature redemption terms. The Council may take
advantage of this and replace some loans with new loans, or repay loans without
replacement, where this is expected to lead to an overall cost saving or a reduction in risk.
The recent rise in interest rates means that more favourable debt rescheduling
opportunities should arise than in previous years.

Treasury Investment Strategy

The Council holds invested funds, representing income received in advance of expenditure
plus balances and reserves held. In the past 12 months, the Council’s treasury investment
balance has ranged between £37m and £165m, and similar levels are expected to be
maintained in the forthcoming year.

Objectives

The CIPFA Code requires the Council to invest its treasury funds prudently, and to have
regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking the highest rate of
return, or yield. The Council’s objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate
balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and
the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income. Where balances are expected to be
invested for more than one year, the Council will aim to achieve a total return that is equal
or higher than the prevailing rate of inflation, in order to maintain the spending power of the

7



5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

Page 14

sum invested. The Council aims to be a responsible investor and will consider
environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors when making investment decisions.

Strategy

As demonstrated by the liability benchmark above, the Council expects to be a long-term
borrower and new treasury investments will therefore be made primarily to manage day-to-
day cash flows using short-term low risk instruments. The Council aims to maintain its policy
of utilising highly creditworthy and highly liquid investments such as deposits with the Debt
Management Office (DMO), AAA rated money market funds and other entities on the
Arlingclose approved counterparty list.

ESG policy

Environmental, social and governance (ESG) considerations are increasingly a factor in
global investors’ decision making, but the framework for evaluating investment
opportunities is still developing and therefore the Council’'s ESG policy does not currently
include ESG scoring or other real-time ESG criteria at an individual investment level. When
investing in banks and funds, the Council will prioritise banks that are signatories to the UN
Principles for Responsible Banking and funds operated by managers that are signatories
to the UN Principles for Responsible Investment, the Net Zero Asset Managers Alliance
and/or the UK Stewardship Code.

Business Models

Under the IFRS 9 standard, the accounting for certain investments depends on the
Council’s “business model” for managing them. The Council aims to achieve value from its
treasury investments by a business model of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore, where other criteria are also met, these investments will continue to be accounted
for at amortised cost.

Approved Counterparties

The Council may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparty types in table 5 on
the following page, subject to the limits shown.

Table 5: Treasury Investment Counterparties and Limits

Sector Time Limit i I Py Sector Limit
Limit
The UK Government 50 years Unlimited n/a
Money Market Funds n/a £10m Unlimited
Local authorities & other government entities 25 years £5m Unlimited
Banks (secured)* 2 years £5m Unlimited
Banks (unsecured)* 13 months £5m Unlimited
Building societies (unsecured)* 13 months £5m £20m
Registered providers (unsecured)* 5 years £5m £20m
Strategic Pooled Funds n/a £5m Unlimited
Real Estate Investment Trusts n/a £5m Unlimited

Minimum Credit Rating

Treasury investments in the sectors marked with an asterisk will only be made with entities
whose lowest published long-term credit rating is no lower than A-. Where available, the
credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of investment is used, otherwise
the counterparty credit rating is used. However, investment decisions are never made solely
based on credit ratings, and all other relevant factors including external advice will be taken
into account.



5.8.

5.9.

5.10.

5.11.

5.12.

5.13.

5.14.

Page 15

Government

The Council may invest in loans, and bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by, national
governments, regional and local authorities and multilateral development banks. These
investments are not subject to bail-in, and there is generally a lower risk of insolvency,
although they are not zero risk. Investments with the UK Government are deemed to be
zero credit risk due to its ability to create additional currency and therefore may be made in
unlimited amounts for up to 50 years.

Bank Secured Investments

Bank secured investments are investments that are secured on the borrower’s assets,
which limits the potential losses in the event of insolvency. The amount and quality of the
security will be a key factor in the investment decision. Covered bonds and reverse
repurchase agreements with banks and building societies are exempt from bail-in. Where
there is no investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the investment is
secured has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral credit rating and the counterparty
credit rating will be used. The combined secured and unsecured investments with any one
counterparty will not exceed the cash limit for secured investments.

Banks and Building Societies (unsecured)

The Council may invest in accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and senior unsecured
bonds with banks and building societies, other than multilateral development banks. These
investments are subject to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in should the regulator determine
that the bank is failing or likely to fail. See below for arrangements relating to operational
bank accounts.

Registered Providers (unsecured)

The Council may invest in loans, and bonds issued or guaranteed by, registered providers
of social housing or registered social landlords, formerly known as housing associations.
These bodies are regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing (in England), the Scottish
Housing Regulator, the Welsh Government and the Department for Communities (in
Northern Ireland). As providers of public services, they retain the likelihood of receiving
government support if needed.

Money Market Funds

Money market funds are pooled funds that offer same-day or short notice liquidity and very
low or no price volatility by investing in short-term money markets. They have the advantage
over banks of providing wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services
of a professional fund manager in return for a small fee. Although no sector limit applies to
money market funds, the Council will take care to diversify its liquid investments over a
variety of providers to ensure access to cash at all times.

Strategic Pooled Funds

Strategic pooled funds include bond, equity and property funds that offer enhanced returns
over the longer term but are more volatile in the short term. These allow the Council to
diversify into asset classes other than cash without the need to own and manage the
underlying investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but are
available for withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and continued suitability in
meeting the Council’s investment objectives will be monitored regularly.

Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITS)

REITs are publicly traded companies that invest mainly in real estate and pay most of their
rental income to investors in a similar manner to pooled property funds. As with property
funds, REITs offer enhanced returns over the longer term, but are more volatile especially

9



5.15.

5.16.

5.17.

5.18.

5.19.

5.20.

Page 16

as the share price reflects changing demand for the shares as well as changes in the value
of the underlying properties.

Operational Bank Accounts

The Council may incur operational exposures, for example through current accounts,
collection accounts and merchant acquiring services, to any UK bank with credit ratings no
lower than BBB- and with assets greater than £25 billion. These are not classed as
investments but are still subject to the risk of a bank bail-in, and balances will therefore be
kept below £10m per bank. The Bank of England has stated that in the event of failure,
banks with assets greater than £25 billion are more likely to be bailed-in than made
insolvent, increasing the chance of the Authority maintaining operational continuity.

Risk Assessment and Credit Ratings

Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Council’s treasury advisers, who will notify
changes in ratings as they occur. Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded so that
it fails to meet the approved investment criteria then:

e no new investments will be made,
any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and

o full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing investments
with the affected counterparty.

Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for possible
downgrade (also known as “negative watch”) so that it may fall below the approved rating
criteria, then only investments that can be withdrawn on the next working day will be made
with that organisation until the outcome of the review is announced. This policy will not
apply to negative outlooks, which indicate a long-term direction of travel rather than an
imminent change of rating.

Other Information on the Security of Investments

The Council understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors of
investment default. Full regard will therefore be given to other available information on the
credit quality of the organisations in which it invests, including credit default swap prices,
financial statements, information on potential government support, reports in the quality
financial press and analysis and advice from the Council’s treasury management adviser.
No investments will be made with an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its
credit quality, even though it may otherwise meet the above criteria.

Reputational aspects

The Council acknowledges that investing with certain counterparties, although financially
secure, may subject it to criticism, whether valid or not, that could impact its public
reputation. This risk will be considered when making investment decisions.

When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all
organisations, as happened in 2008, 2020 and 2022, this is not generally reflected in credit
ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances, the Council will
restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit quality and reduce the
maximum duration of its investments to maintain the required level of security. The extent
of these restrictions will be in line with prevailing financial market conditions. If these
restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of high credit quality are
available to invest the Council’s cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with the
UK Government, or with other local authorities. This will cause investment returns to fall but
will protect the principal sum invested.

Investment Limits

10



5.21.

5.22.

5.23.

6.2.

Page 17

The Council’s revenue reserves available to cover investment losses are forecast to be £30
million on 31st March 2024 and £30 million on 31 March 2025. In order that no more than
100% of available reserves will be put at risk in the case of a single default, the maximum
that will be lent to any one organisation (other than the UK Government) will be £10 million.
A group of entities under the same ownership will be treated as a single organisation for
limit purposes.

Limits are also placed on fund managers, investments in brokers’ nominee accounts and
foreign countries as below. Investments in pooled funds and multilateral development
banks do not count against the limit for any single foreign country since the risk is diversified
over many countries.

Table 6: Additional Investment Limits

Cash Limit
Any single organisation, except the UK Central Government £10m each
UK Central Government Unlimited
Any group of organisations under the same ownership £10m per group
Any group of pooled funds under the same management £10m per manager
Negotiable instruments held in a broker's nominee account £10m per broker
Foreign countries £10m per country
Registered providers and registered social landlords £10m in total
Unsecured investments with building societies £10m in total
Loans to unrated corporates £10m in total
Money market funds* £50m in total
Real Estate Investment Trusts £10m in total

* These limits apply for both Haringey Council and Haringey Pension Fund, so the limit for Money Market Funds is £10m
per MMF and £50m aggregate limit for the Council, and £50m for the Pension Fund.

Liquidity Management

The Council uses purpose-built cash flow forecasting software to determine the maximum
period for which funds may prudently be committed. The forecast is compiled on a prudent
basis to minimise the risk of the Council being forced to borrow on unfavourable terms to
meet its financial commitments. Limits on long-term investments are set by reference to the
Council’'s medium-term financial plan and cash flow forecast.

Treasury Management Prudential Indicators

The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks using the
following indicators.

Security

The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by monitoring
the value-weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio. This is calculated by
applying a score to each investment (AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the arithmetic
average, weighted by the size of each investment. Unrated investments are assigned a
score based on their perceived risk.

Credit Risk Indicator Target
Portfolio average credit rating Above A, score of 6 or lower
Liquidity

11



6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

6.9.

6.10.

Page 18

The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring
the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments within a rolling 3-month period,
without additional borrowing.

Liquidity Risk Indicator Target

Total cash available within 3 months £30m

Interest rate exposures

This indicator is set to control the Council’'s exposure to interest rate risk. The upper limits
on the one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall in interest rates will be:

Interest Rate Risk Indicator Target
Upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise in £om
interest rates

Upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% fall in £om

interest rates

The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that maturing loans
and investments will be replaced at current rates.

Maturity structure of borrowing

This indicator is set to control the Council’'s exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and
lower limits on the maturity structure of borrowing are shown on the following page:

Refinancing Rate Risk Indicator Upper Limit Lower Limit
Under 12 months 40% 0%
12 months and within 24 months 40% 0%
24 months and within 5 years 50% 0%
5 years and within 10 years 50% 0%
10 years and above 100% 0%

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of borrowing is
the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

Total short-term borrowing

In recent years, the Council has used short term borrowing (under 1 year in duration) from
other local authorities to meet short-term liquidity requirements. Short term borrowing can
also be raised from other counterparties such as banks. This approach offers increased
flexibility for cash flow management by the Council and can serve as an alternative to
borrowing from PWLB over a longer term.

Short-term borrowing exposes the Council to refinancing risk. This is the risk that interest
rates may rise quickly over a short period of time, resulting in significantly higher rates when
the loans mature. In such cases, there is a risk that the new replacement borrowing would
need to be taken at higher interest rates compared to the maturing loans.

Bearing this in mind, the Council has set a limit on the total amount of short-term borrowing
that has no associated protection against interest rate rises, as a proportion of all borrowing.

Short term borrowing Target
Upper limit on short-term borrowing that exposes the

Council to interest rate rises as a percentage of total 20%
borrowing

Long-term treasury management investments

12



Page 19

6.11. The purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The prudential limits on the long-
term treasury management investments will be:

Price Risk Indicator 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
Limit on principal invested beyond £10m £5m £5m
year end

Related Matters

The CIPFA Code requires the Council to include the following in its treasury management
strategy.

Financial Derivatives

Local authorities have previously made use of financial derivatives embedded into loans
and investments both to reduce interest rate risk (e.g., interest rate collars and forward
deals) and to reduce costs or increase income at the expense of greater risk (e.g., LOBO
loans and callable deposits). The general power of competence in section 1 of the Localism
Act 2011 removes much of the uncertainty over local authorities’ use of standalone financial
derivatives (i.e., those that are not embedded into a loan or investment).

The Council will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, futures,
and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to reduce the overall level of the
financial risks that the Council is exposed to. Additional risks presented, such as credit
exposure to derivative counterparties, will be considered when determining the overall level
of risk. Embedded derivatives, including those present in pooled funds and forward starting
transactions, will not be subject to this policy, although the risks they present will be
managed in line with the overall treasury risk management strategy.

Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that meets the
approved investment criteria, assessed using the appropriate credit rating for derivative
exposures. An allowance for credit risk will be included to count against the counterparty
credit limit and the relevant foreign country limit.

In line with the CIPFA Code, the Council will seek external advice and will consider that
advice before entering into financial derivatives to ensure that it fully understands the
implications.

Housing Revenue Account

On 1%t April 2012, the Council notionally split each of its existing long-term loans into
General Fund and HRA pools. In the future, new long-term loans borrowed will be assigned
in their entirety to one pool or the other. Interest payable and other costs/income arising
from long-term loans (e.g., premiums and discounts on early redemption) will be charged/
credited to the respective revenue account. Differences between the value of the HRA loans
pool and the HRA’s underlying need to borrow (adjusted for HRA balance sheet resources
available for investment) will result in a notional cash balance which may be positive or
negative. This balance will be measured each month and interest transferred between the
General Fund and HRA at the Authority’s average interest rate on investments, adjusted
for credit risk.

Markets in Financial Instruments Directive

The Council has opted up to professional client status with its providers of financial services,
including advisers, banks, brokers and fund managers, allowing it access to a greater range
of services but without the greater regulatory protections afforded to individuals and small
companies. Given the size and range of the Council’s treasury management activities, the
Director of Finance (S151 Officer) considers this to be the most appropriate status.

13



8.2.

8.3.

Page 20

Financial Implications

The budget for investment income in 2024/25 is £2.4m based on an average investment
portfolio of £50 million at an interest rate of 4.75%.

The budget for total debt interest paid in 2024/25 is detailed in table 7 below for both the
General Fund and HRA. If the actual levels of investments and borrowing, or the actual
interest rates, differ from those forecasted, the performance against the budget will be
correspondingly different.

Table 7 demonstrates the revenue budgets in both the General Fund and HRA for both
interest costs on borrowing and minimum revenue provision (MRP) charges.

Table 7: Revenue budget for interest costs and MRP

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29
Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
£m £m £m £m £m £m
MRP - pre 2008 expenditure 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
MRP - post 2008 13.7 12.8 14.1 15.1 16.2 16.7
expenditure
Total MRP 18.7 17.8 19.1 20.1 21.2 21.7
Interest Costs (GF) 16.9 14.8 20.0 22.0 24.5 27.1
%"g)”a' Financing Costs 35.6 32.6 39.1 421 45.7 48.8
Offsetting Savings for self- 12.7 11 27 37 42 52
funded schemes
Estimated Capital
Financing Budgets 22.9 315 36.4 38.4 41.5 43.6
Interest Costs (HRA) 18.6 25.9 36.0 48.3 60.8 69.6

Other Options Considered

The CIPFA Code does not prescribe any particular treasury management strategy for local
authorities to adopt. The Director of Finance (S151 Officer), having consulted the Cabinet
Member for Finance, believes that the above strategy represents an appropriate balance
between risk management and cost effectiveness. Some alternative strategies, with their
financial and risk management implications, are listed on the following page.

Alternative Impact on income and

expenditure

Impact on risk management

Lower chance of losses from
credit related defaults, but any
such losses may be greater

Invest in a narrower range of Interest income will be lower
counterparties and/or for

shorter times

14



Page 21

Invest in a wider range of
counterparties and/or for
longer times

Interest income will be higher

Increased risk of losses from
credit related defaults, but any
such losses may be smaller

Borrow additional sums at
long-term fixed interest rates

Debt interest costs will rise;
this is unlikely to be offset by
higher investment income

Higher investment balance
leading to a higher impact in
the event of a default;
however long-term interest
costs may be more certain

Borrow short-term or variable
loans instead of long-term
fixed rates

Debt interest costs will initially
be lower

Increases in debt interest
costs will be broadly offset by
rising investment income in
the medium term, but long-
term costs may be less certain

Reduce level of borrowing

Saving on debt interest is
likely to exceed lost
investment income

Reduced investment balance
leading to a lower impact in
the event of a default;
however long-term interest
costs may be less certain

15




Page 22

Annex A — Arlingclose Economic & Interest Rate Forecast - December 2023

Underlying assumptions:

Forecast:

UK inflation and wage growth remain elevated but have eased over the past two
months fuelling rate cuts expectations. Near-term rate cuts remain unlikely, although
downside risks will increase as the UK economy likely slides into recession.

The MPC’s message remains unchanged as the Committee seeks to maintain tighter
financial conditions. Monetary policy will remain tight as inflation is expected to
moderate to target slowly, although some wage and inflation measures are below the
Bank’s last forecasts.

Despite some deterioration in activity data, the UK economy remains resilient in the
face of tighter monetary policy. Recent data has been soft but mixed; the more timely
PMI figures suggest that the services sector is recovering from a weak Q3. Tighter
policy will however bear down on domestic and external activity as interest rates bite.

Employment demand is easing. Anecdotal evidence suggests slowing recruitment
and pay growth, and we expect unemployment to rise further. As unemployment rises
and interest rates remain high, consumer sentiment will deteriorate. Household and
business spending will therefore be weak.

Inflation will fall over the next 12 months. The path to the target will not be smooth,
with higher energy prices and base effects interrupting the downtrend at times. The
MPC’s attention will remain on underlying inflation measures and wage data. We
believe policy rates will remain at the peak for another 10 months, or until the MPC is
comfortable the risk of further ‘second-round’ effects has diminished.

Maintaining monetary policy in restrictive territory for so long, when the economy is
already struggling, will require significant loosening in the future to boost activity.

Global bond vyields will remain volatile. Markets are currently running with
expectations of near-term US rate cuts, fuelled somewhat unexpectedly by US
policymakers themselves. Term premia and bond yields have experienced a marked
decline. It would not be a surprise to see a reversal if data points do not support the
narrative, but the current 10-year yield appears broadly reflective of a lower medium-
term level for Bank Rate.

There is a heightened risk of fiscal policy and/or geo-political events causing
substantial volatility in yields.

The MPC held Bank Rate at 5.25% in December. We believe this is the peak for Bank
Rate.

The MPC will cut rates in the medium term to stimulate the UK economy but will be
reluctant to do so until it is sure there will be no lingering second-round effects. We
see rate cuts from Q3 2024 to a low of around 3% by early-mid 2026.

The immediate risks around Bank Rate have become more balanced, due to the
weakening UK economy and dampening effects on inflation. This shifts to the
downside in the short term as the economy weakens.

Long-term gilt yields are now substantially lower. Arlingclose expects yields to be flat
from here over the short-term reflecting medium term Bank Rate forecasts. Periodic
volatility is likely.

Interest Rate Forecast:

16



Page 23

The table below shows the most recent interest rate forecast provided by Arlingclose.

Current Dec-23 Mar-24  Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24 Mar-25 Jun-25 Sep25 Dec-25 Mar-26 Jun-26 Sep-26
Dfficial Bank Rate
Upside risk 0.00 0.00 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 1.00 1.00
Central Case 5.25 5.25 5.25 5.25 5.00 4.75 4.25 4,00 3.75 3.50 3.25 3.00 3.00
Dow nside risk 0.00 0.00 -0.25 -0.50 -0.75 -1.00]  -1.00] -1.00 -1.000 -1.00f -1.00f -1.00] -1.00
3-month money market rate
Upside risk 0.00 0.00 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 1.00 1.00
Central Case 5.40 5.40 5.40 5.30 5.15 4.80 4.30 4.10 3.80 3.50 3.25 3.05 3.05
Dow nside risk 0.00 0.00 -0.25 -0.50 -0.75 -1.00] -1.00] -1.00 -1.00{ -1.00{ -1.00f -1.00] -1.00
Ay gilt vield
Upside risk 0.00 0.25 0.75 0.85 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Central Case 3.77 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.70 3.60 3.50 3.50 3.40 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.35
Dow nside risk 0.00] -0.25 -0.75 -0.B5 -1.00 -1.00] -1.00] -1.00 -1.00{ -1.00f -1.00f -1.00] -1.00
10yr gilt yield
Upside risk 0.00 0.25 0.75 0.85 0.85 0.%90 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Central Case 3.72 3.75 3.80 3.80 3.80 3.80 3.80 3.80 3.75 3.65 3.60 3.65 3.70
Dow nside risk 0.00] -0.25 -0.75 -0.B5 -1.00 -1.00]  -1.00] -1.00 -1.000 -1.00f -1.00f -1.00] -1.00
20yr gilt vield
Upside risk 0.00 0.25 0.75 0.85 0.85 0.90 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Central Case 4.16 4.20 4.20 4.20 4.20 4.20 4.20 4.20 4.20 4.20] 4.20 4,200 4.25
Dow nside risk 0.00[ -0.25 -0.75 -0.85 -1.00 -1.00] -1.00] -1.00 -1.00{ -1.00f -1.00f -1.00] -1.00
50yr gilt vield
Upside risk 0.00 0.25 0.75 0.85 0.85 0.90 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Central Case 3.76 3.80 3.85 3.90 3.90 3.90 3.90 3.90 3.90 3.90 3.95 3.95 3.95
Dow nside risk 0.00[ -0.25 -0.75 -0.85 -1.00 -1.00{ -1.00] -1.00 -1.00{ -1.00f -1.00f -1.00] -1.00

PWLB Standard Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 1.00%
PWLB Certainty Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 0.80%
PWLB HRA Rate = Gilt yield + 0.40%

UK Infrastructure Bank Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 0.60%

Annex B — Existing Investment & Debt Portfolio Position - December 2023

17



External borrowing:
Public Works Loan Board
LOBO loans from banks
Local authorities

Treasury investments:
The UK Government

Money market funds

Page 24

642.1
100.0
45.0

34.4
20.0

2.9%
4.7%
5.7%

5.2%
5.3%

18



	Agenda
	6 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2024/25
	2425_TreasuryManagementStrategyStatement_FINALversion


